
 

 

BOARD OF APPEALS STAFF 
John Tate, Chairman Deborah L. Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairman  Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
Brian Haren  Maria Binns, Zoning Coordinator  
Kyle McCormick E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney 
Latisha Roebuck 

 

 
AGENDA  

Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Fayette County Administrative Complex 

Public Meeting Room 
January 26, 2026 

7:00 P.M. 
 

*In the event of inclement weather or unsafe conditions, this 
meeting may be rescheduled. Any changes will be announced on 

the Fayette County Website (https://fayettecountyga.gov) as 
soon as possible.    

 

 

1. Call to Order. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on December 15, 2025. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. Consideration of Petition No. A-912-25 – Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail 
Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie Newman Living Trust. Applicants are 
requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-125(d)(1)- A-R., as allowed under Sec. 
110-242(c)(1)-Requesting a variance to the minimum lot size for a legal nonconforming 
lot, to allow a lot that is 4.995 acres in the A-R zoning district to be eligible for 
development.  The subject property is located in Land Lots 31 of the 7th District and fronts Nelms 
Road. 

6. Consideration of Petition No. A-915-25 – Kimberly N. Waldrop, Owner. Applicant is 
requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-137(d)(6)- R-40., to reduce the side yard 
setback from 15 feet to 5 feet to allow the construction of a detached garage. The subject 
property is located in Land Lots 184 of the 4th District and fronts Hammock Bay Road. 

7. Consideration of Petition No. A-916-25 – Ritchey Living Trust, Owner. Applicants are 
requesting a Variance to Sec. 110-149 (d)(6)(c)- PUD., to reduce the side yard setback 
from 15 feet to 12.63 feet to allow an existing attached garage to remain. The subject 
property is located in Land Lots 4 of the 6th District and fronts Wellborn Chase. 



 

 

8. Consideration of Petition No. A-917-25 – Douglas John Williams, Owner. Applicant is 
requesting a variance to reduce the side yard setback in the R-40 zoning district from 15 
feet to 7 feet to allow a new accessory structure to be constructed. The subject property is 
located in Land Lots 221 of the 5th District and fronts Bentley Way. Staff will request a motion to 
withdraw by petitioner. 

9. Consideration of Petition No. A-918-25 – Kerr Firefly Properties, LLC, Owner. Applicant is 
requesting a variance to Sec. 110-179(c)(1)(b)-In the A-R zoning. - Request to approve an 
increase of an accessory structure maximum footprint from 700 SF to 1200 SF to allow an 
existing accessory structure to remain. The subject property is located in Land Lots 104 of the 
7th District and fronts Dogwood Trail. Staff will request a motion to withdraw by petitioner. 

10. Consideration of Petition No. A-919-25-A – Neil Orand and Tara Fogle Orand, Owner. 
Applicant is requesting the following: A) Variance to Sec. 110-137(d)(6)- R-40.- 
Requesting a variance to reduce the side yard setback from 15 feet to 7 feet to allow a new 
accessory structure to be built. The subject property is located in Land Lots 184 of the 4th 
District and fronts Hammock Way Drive and Brooks Woolsey Road. 

11. Consideration of Petition No. A-919-25-B – Neil Orand and Tara Fogle Orand, Owner. 
Applicant is requesting B)Variance to Sec. 110-137(d)(4)- R-40.- Requesting a variance to 
reduce the front yard setback along Brooks Woolsey Road from 60 feet to 40 feet. The 
subject property is located in Land Lots 184 of the 4th District and fronts Hammock Way Drive 
and Brooks Woolsey Road. 

12. Consideration of Petition No. A-920-25 – Neal W. McEwen and Patricia H. McEwen, 
Owners. Applicant is requesting a variance to Sec. 110-79(c)(1)(b) to increase the 
maximum square footage of a guest house from 700 square feet to 1,782 square feet to 
allow an existing and permitted guesthouse to remain. The subject property is located in Land 
Lots 98 of the 4th District and fronts Morgan Mill Road. Removed by staff, this case is not 
eligible for a variance.   

13. Consideration of Petition No. A-921-25-A – Alexis Kirkbride, Owner. Applicant is 
requesting A) Variance to Sec. 110-79(e) to allow an accessory structure located in front 
yard to remain. The subject property is located in Land Lots 1 of the 9th District and fronts Rivers 
Road.  

14. Consideration of Petition No. A-921-25-B – Alexis Kirkbride, Owner. Applicant is 
requesting B) Variance to Sec. 110-133(d)(5) to reduce the rear yard setback from 50 feet 
to 37.6 feet to allow an existing accessory structure to remain. The subject property is located 
in Land Lots 1 of the 9th District and fronts Rivers Road.  

15. Consideration of Petition No. A-921-25-C – Alexis Kirkbride, Owner. Applicant is 
requesting C) Variance to Sec. 110-133(d)(5) to reduce the rear yard setback from 50 feet 
to 33.7 feet to allow the pool deck/equipment to remain as required in Sec. 110-79(k). The 
subject property is located in Land Lots 1 of the 9th District and fronts Rivers Road.  

16. Consideration of Petition No. A-922-25-A – Tim A. Belcher and Ruth M. Belcher 
Revocable Living Trust, Owners. Applicants are requesting the following: A) Variance to 



 

 

Sec. 110-79(e), to allow an accessory structure in the front yard. The subject property is 
located in Land Lots 65 of the 5th District and fronts Lester Road and Sherwood Road.  

17. Consideration of Petition No. A-922-25-B – Tim A. Belcher and Ruth M. Belcher 
Revocable Living Trust, Owners. Applicants are requesting the following: B) Variance to 
Sec. 110-79(c)(1)(c), to exceed the allowable 3,600 square footage of an accessory structure 
in the R-40 zoning to a total of 7,407 square feet to allow the construction of an aircraft 
hangar. The subject property is located in Land Lots 65 of the 5th District and fronts Lester Road 
and Sherwood Road.    

18. Consideration of Petition No. A-922-25-C – Tim A. Belcher and Ruth M. Belcher 
Revocable Living Trust, Owners. Applicants are requesting the following: C) Variance to 
Sec.110-79 (c)(1)(a) to exceed the allowable quantity (three) total, to allow four accessory 
structures on a lot with a minimum of five acres. The subject property is located in Land Lots 65 
of the 5th District and fronts Lester Road and Sherwood Road.    

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

   



                        Minutes 12/15/2025 

Page 1 
 

 
 

THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS met on December 15, 
2025, at 7:00 P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall 
Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:      John Tate, Chairman                                            

Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairman  
Bill Beckwith 
Brian Haren 
Kyle McCormick 
 

STAFF PRESENT:           Debbie Bell, Planning and Zoning Director  
Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 

                                                E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney [Absent] 
    Maria Binns, Zoning Secretary     
                  

 
1. Call to Order. Chairman John Tate called the December 15, 2025, meeting to 

order at 7:02 pm. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Chairman John Tate offered the invocation and led the 
audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda. Bill Beckwith made a motion to approve the agenda. Brian 
Haren seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on November 24, 2025. Brian 
Haren made the motion to approve the minutes of the meeting held on November 
24, 2025. Bill Beckwith seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. Consideration of Petition No. A-907-25 – Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail 
Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie Newman Living Trust. Applicants are 
requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-242(h). – A-R, requesting an illegal 
lot to be deemed a legal nonconforming lot. The subject property is located in Land 
Lots 31 of the 7th District and fronts Nelms Road. 
 
Ms. Debbie Bell read the description above and explained that this petition was tabled from 
the October 27, 2025 and it does meet all the criteria per Sec. 110-242(h), the lot is an illegal 
lot because it is zoned A-R but has less than five acres created after November 13, 1980 and 
was created illegal via plat by a previous owner recorded in April 1986 creating a remnant and 
Mr. Newman is not related to him/her and there is not property available to ad to this lot to 
convert it to the legal statutory and the applicant had removed all the items caused the petition 
to be tabled, except for a small greenhouse and livestock that does not require a permit and 
were allow to remain.   



ZBA Meeting 
12/15/2025 
Page 2 

 

 

 
        Chairman John Tate asked if the petitioner was present. 
 
        Mr. Jason Newman brought packets for the Board showing the pictures of the property 
that has brought into compliance and the concept plan of the structure building he would like 
to place on the property if approval of the petition, as to the letter he gave the neighboring 
properties, once he submits the petition. Mr. Newman also stated that he intends to create a 
family gathering property for his kids to work on. He met with the EMD Department, where 
they confirmed the floodplain assumptions and the procedural corrections.   
             
       Chairman Tate asked if anyone in the audience was in support of the petition, with no 
response, then he asked if anyone was in opposition to the petition.   
 
       Mr. James Heighton stated he has been on Nelms Road since 1984 and wasn’t in 
opposition to someone living on the property in question, but they feel they don’t have a lot of 
information on what is going to happen later, since they will not be the primary home on it and 
disregarding the rural setting they have, expressed his concern the property might become a 
dump or not knowing who is coming and going.   
 
        Ms. Hope Winters Colvin stated  she resides next door to the property and that Mr. 
Newman has provided different narratives of his intentions, making it difficult for the 
neighbors to understand the real scope of what is being planned, changing it from a small 
workshop to an industrial (6,000 sq ft industrial commercial) building on a floodplain, 
impacting negatively the surrounding environment, and where septic is not archivable on that 
property.  
 
        Mr. Phillip Colvin explained that their home sits in front of the property in question, and 
they are concerned about the massive building proposed, along with automotive fluids, 
fertilizers, animal waste, and pollution. He asked the Board to deny the petition for the quiet 
they have now.  
 
       Mr. Newman returned for rebuttal and commented that the opposition statements had 
been mistaken about the size of the structure, where anything over 6,000 sq ft is not close to 
what they are proposing and would not be approved. They had septic approval from the 
Department of Health, and they have more than enough for the proper drainage and will not 
use any pesticides or pollute the water just wanted to teach their kids how to farm and will 
make sure there is no damage to the neighbors or do anything massive. 
 
     Chairman Tate brought the item back to the Board for questions. 
 
      Mr. Bill Beckwith asked staff if the property with an A-R zoning is to be a residence on the 
property before any accessory structures. 
 
      Ms. Bell responded, Not in A-R zoning, there are certain auxiliary structures, greenhouses, 
and other kinds of farm structures that are allowed before the primary residence is built. 
 
      Mr. Beckwith asked if buildings are put up on other zoning as accessory structures. 



ZBA Meeting 
12/15/2025 
Page 3 

 

 

       Ms. Bell responded that in any other residential zoning, any other building beyond the 
primary dwelling is considered an accessory structure, but in A-R zoning, a dual purpose 
zoning is agricultural and residential allowing a variety of non residential structures before the 
primary  house is built.  
 
      Mr. Beckwith asked if there were square footage limits on those buildings. 
 
      Ms. Bell responded that it will be based on the square footage requirements based on the 
lot size.  
 
      Mr. Beckwith asked that the comments from the Department of Environmental 
Management stated that the approval of the petition does not guarantee the lot will be eligible 
for a building permit as buildable area is reduced due to floodplain and riparian buffers. 
 
     Ms. Bell responded anything over 200 sq ft requires a building permit, and a site plan will 
be reviewed by multiple departments. 
 
     Mr. Beckwith asked Whatever is approved tonight will still have to go through other 
building regulations within county departments and not do whatever they want? 
 
     Ms. Bell responded that this petition is only to convert from illegal to legal status and then 
take the next step. 
 
     Mr. Brian Haren asked staff if all of the unpermitted uses discussed on the last meeting 
were rectified. 
 
     Ms. Bell responded Yes. 
 
     Mr. Haren commented that tonight’s decision is not an unusual action to create a non-
conforming lot and happens all the time. Mr. Haren sympathized with all of the comments that 
were addressed, but those are not issues for the board now and said this petition has to do with 
the development face of the property if it is declared non-conforming. 
 
     Chairman John Tate stated agreed with Mr. Haren, and the board will be addressing 
bringing the lot into compliance per Sec. 110-242(h) and not by just placing the building on 
the property.       
 
Brian Haren made a motion to APPROVE Petition No. A-907- 25. Vice-Chairman Marsha 
Hopkins seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
  

6. Consideration of the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 2026 Calendar Schedule.  
 
Ms. Bell presented the ZBA 2026 Calendar Schedule and asked the board for questions 
or changes they might have. 
 
       Chairman John Tate commented about changes discussed previously for memorial 
day meeting. 



ZBA Meeting 
12/15/2025 
Page 4 

 

 

        Ms. Bell responded they had 2 days in question May 26, 2026 and December 14, 
2026 because of the holiday schedule.  
 
        Chairman asked the board for questions or comments. 
 
        Vice-Chairman Marsha Hopkins about the May 26, 2026, meeting being after the 
Memorial holiday and might be impacted by absences.  
 
        Ms. Bell responded that they could change it to May to see if they have a meeting 
space for that day and asked the board to approved the calendar as presented to publish 
the new hearing through April or change it to May 18 to fit everyone schedule. 
 
        Mr. Haren stated he would it agree to change it to May 18, 2026. 
 
Vice-Chairman Marsha Hopkins accepted the Amended Zoning Board of Appeals 
2026 Calendar, with the May meeting scheduled for May 18, 2026. Brian Haren 
seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-1; Bill Beckwith abstained from voting. 
 
Mr. Brian Haren thanked Mr. Bill Beckwith for his 30 years of service in the county 
within the Zoning Board of Appeals and Planning Commission. Mr. Haren congratulated 
him and mentioned it was a pleasure working with him. 
 
Ms. Debbie Bell stated there will be a special recognition on January 22, 2026, at 
the Board of Commissioners Meeting  
 
Mr. Beckwith responded that he would see if he could make it.  
 
Staff commented that there were no more public hearings for the night, and the 
board moved to adjourn the meeting.  

 
 ***************** 

Chairman John Tate moved to adjourn the December 15, 2025, Zoning Board of Appeals 
meeting. Brian Haren seconded the motion. The motion carried 5-0.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:49 pm.   

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
                             OF  
                                                  FAYETTE COUNTY                                                                                               
Respectfully Submitted by:                                                                                  
               

                                                                                               
              JOHN TATE, CHAIRMAN                                      

                                                                      _ 
MARIA BINNS 
ZONING SECRETARY 



 pg. 1 A-912-25 

PETITION NO:  A-912 -25 
 
Requested Actions:   Variance to Sec. 110-125. – A-R, Agricultural-Residential (d)(1), as allowed under 
Sec. 110-242(c)(1) – Requesting a variance to the minimum lot size for an unimproved nonconforming 
lot, to allow a lot that is 208,216.8 square feet in area (4.78 acres)  to be eligible for development. 
      
Location:  Nelms Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0701 063 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  7th District, Land Lot(s) 31 
 
Zoning:   A-R, Agricultural-Residential 
 
Lot Size:   208,216.8 square feet (4.78 Acres) 
 
Owner(s):  Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie 
Newman Living Trust 
 
Agent:   N/A 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026  
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

Per Sec. 110-242(c)(1), the applicant is requesting a variance to Sec. 110-125. – A-R, (d)(1), to 
reduce  the minimum lot size in the A-R zoning district for a legal nonconforming lot, to allow 
a lot that is 208,216.8 square feet in area (4.78 acres) to be eligible for development.  The 
variance amount is 9,583.2 square feet. 

 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 

• The lot is a legal nonconforming lot. It has 208,216.8 square feet in area (4.78 acres), which is 
less than the required 217,800 square feet (5.00 acres) in the A-R zoning district. However, it 
meets the criteria to be eligible for a variance to the minimum lot size under Sec. 110-242. 

• The lot was deemed to be a nonconforming lot by the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals 
on December 15, 2025. 

• The variance is necessary for the owners to be able to obtain a building permit. 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-912-25 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
This parcel was deemed to be a legal nonconforming lot by an affirmative vote of the Zoning 
Board of Appeals on December 15, 2025. 
 

2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 
practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 

The owners would not be able to get a building permit without a variance to the lot size. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
The conditions are unique to this parcel. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 
the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and 

The variance will not be detrimental to the public good. 
 

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 
others in the same District are allowed; and, 

The applicant would not be able to build a structure on this parcel without the variance. 
  



 pg. 3 A-912-25 

HISTORY 
 
This parcel is a legal nonconforming lot. It has not been rezoned. 
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-242. Powers and duties. 
 
(c) Request for a variance:  Nonconforming Lots. The zoning board of appeals may authorize, 
upon appeal in specific cases, a variance from the terms of these regulations as will not be contrary 
to the public interest where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of 
these regulations will, in an individual case, result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so 
that the spirit of these regulations shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and 
substantial justice done. 
(1) The owner of a nonconforming lot may request a variance to the minimum lot size for its 
zoning district.  However, no nonconforming lot shall be eligible for a variance to the minimum lot size 
which would result in the nonconforming lot being less than one acre in size.   
 
Sec. 110-125. – A-R, Agricultural-Residential District. 
 

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the A-R zoning 
district shall be as follows: 

(1) Lot area: 217,800 square feet (five acres). 
 (2) Lot width: 250 feet. 
(3) Floor area: 1,200 square feet. 
(4) Front yard setback: 

a. Major thoroughfare: 
1. Arterial: 100 feet. 
2. Collector: 100 feet. 

b. Minor thoroughfare: 75 feet. 
(5) Rear yard setback: 75 feet. 
(6) Side yard setback: 50 feet. 

 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System –No objections. 
 Public Works – No objections. 
 Environmental Management – No objections. Prior to issuance of building permits, the 

owner may be required to locate wetlands, creeks, and produce a flood certificate.  
 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed variance. 

This does not constitute approval of future use, nor does it guarantee that the lot will have 
suitable soils for a septic system.  

 Fire – No objections. 
 
  



 pg. 4 A-912-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 5 A-912-25 

 
 



 pg. 6 A-912-25 

 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 7 A-912-25 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-912-25 

 
 

SURVEY 



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



















 pg. 1 A-915-25 

PETITION NO:  A-915-25 
 
Requested Action:   Variance to reduce left side building setback from 15’ to 5’ in the R-40 (Single-
Family Residential) District, to allow the construction of a detached garage. 
      
Location:  104 Hammock Bay Drive, Fayetteville, GA 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 044206004 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 169  
 
Zoning: R-40 
 
Owner(s):  Kimberly Waldrop 
 
Agent:  Marion D. Waldrop, Jr. 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026     
 
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following variance to construct a new detached garage: 

1. Variance to Sec. 110-137(d)(6).- Side yard setback requirement, to reduce the side yard setback 
from 15 feet to 5 feet in the R-40 zoning district. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is staff’s opinion that the property presents a unique situation. The shallow depth of the cul-de-sac 
lot, combined with five (5) setbacks (two front yards) and the topography, create a challenge. The 
adjacent neighbor sent a letter stating that they have no objection to the variance request. 
 
NOTE: Per Sec. 102-286(9), a survey of the lot and foundation shall be required as part of the 
construction and inspection process. 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of the request to reduce the rear yard setback from 15 feet to 5 feet 
for the construction of a detached garage. 
 
 
 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-915-25 

HISTORY 
 
The subject property is a legal lot of record in the Hammock Bay S/D, with a plat recorded February 
13, 2007. It is a 1.000-acre lot and is a legal, conforming lot in the R-40 zoning district.  
 
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-137. R-40 – Single-family residential district. 
 
(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the R-40 zoning district 
shall be as follows: 
 

(6) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 
 

DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  
 

 Water System – FCWS has no objection to the proposed variance.  
 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objection to the variance request. 
 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed variance.  
 Fire – No objections. 
 Building Safety – No objections. A building permit is required for new garage. 

 
  



 pg. 3 A-915-25 

CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION OF A VARIANCE  
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT OF CRITERIA 
 
(Please see the attached application package for the applicant’s responses to the criteria.)  
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.  Please read each standard below and then address each standard with a 
detailed response.  Attach additional information/documentation as necessary. 
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
• The size and topography do present some unique conditions.  

o The parcel is a unique shape because it is located in a cul de sac and it has two road 
frontages. 

o The owner would like to utilize the existing driveway, avoid extra grading, and retain 
mature trees.  

 
2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 

practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
• The lot is relatively shallow because it is on a cul de sac. Locating the garage on the north 

part of the lot would require siting it away from the house and the driveway. Utilities also 
interfere with such an alternative. 

 
3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 

• There are conditions on this parcel that limit use and development that are specific to the 
parcel.  

 
4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 

the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and, 

• The neighbor on the affected side of the property has stated that they have no objection to 
the setback reduction. 
  

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 
others in the same District are allowed; and, 

• A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would not deprive the applicant of the right to 
construct a garage, but it would be located in an area of the yard that is not as easily 
accessible.  

 
 
 



 pg. 4 A-915-25 

 



 pg. 5 A-915-25 



 pg. 6 A-915-25 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 7 A-915-25 



 pg. 8 A-915-25 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 9 A-915-25 

 
 
 
 
 



7

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle











                  Description 
                                104 Hammock Bay Drive 

  
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 184 of the 4th District of 
Fayette County, Georgia and being designated as Lot 16 Hammock Bay at Lake 
Horton as Recorded in Plat Book 43 Page 159-163 Fayette County, Georgia 
Records on a plat of survey for Kimberly N. Waldrop by McClung Surveying 
Services, Inc. dated 10-18-23, Last Revised 10-14-25 and being more fully 
described as follows; 
  
To reach the Point of Beginning, start at a point located at the intersection of the 
Easterly Right-of-Way of Hammock Bay Drive (60’ R/W) and the North Right-of-
Way of Porchview Court (60’ R/W). Thence running North, Northeasterly and 
Northwesterly along the Right-of-Way of Hammock Bay Drive a distance of 
582.99 feet to a rebar found located along the Northwesterly Right-of-Way of 
Hammock Bay Drive and the Point of Beginning. Thence from the Point of 
Beginning and running Southwesterly along Right-of-Way and following the arc of 
a curve to the left an arc distance of 127.53 feet (said arc having a radius of 
60.00 feet, a chord bearing of S01°45’09”W and a chord distance of 104.84 feet) 
to a rebar found located along the Southwesterly Right-of-Way of Hammock Bay 
Drive. Thence leaving Right-of-Way and running S81°59’29”W a distance of 
201.50 feet to a rebar found. Thence running N05°03’56”E a distance of 244.06 
feet to a rebar set located along the Southeasterly Right-of-Way of Woolsey 
Brooks Road (R/W Varies). Thence running N59°31’47”E along Right-of-Way a 
distance of 130.90 feet to a rebar found. Thence leaving Right-of-Way and 
running S21°09’42”E a distance of 189.39 feet to said rebar found located along 
Northwesterly Right-of-Way of Hammock Bay Drive and the Point of Beginning. 
  
Said tract or parcel of land containing 1.000± acres or 43,560± square feet. 

















 pg. 1 A-916-25 

PETITION NO:  A-916-25 
 
Requested Action:   To reduce the side yard building setback from 15 feet to 12.3 feet to allow an 
existing attached garage to remain. 

 
Location:  140 Wellborn Chase, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0602 05020 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 6 
 
Zoning:   PUD-PRD, Planned Residential Development 
 
Lot Size:   1.014 Acres 
 
Owner(s):  Elizabeth Ritchey 
 
Agent:   N/A 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

Per Sec. 110-149(d)(6)(c), requesting to reduce the side yard setback in the PUD-PRD zoning 
district from 15’ to 12.63’ to allow the existing attached garage to remain. 

 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
The variance is minor and unlikely to have a negative effect on any neighboring properties. 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-916-25 

HISTORY 
 
The house was constructed in 1994, prior to a requirement for foundation surveys. Staff noted the 
encroachment when the contractor applied for a building permit to reconstruct the house, after it 
was damaged by fire.   
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 

Sec. 110-149.  -  Planned unit development.  

(d) Planned residential development. 

(6) Minimum dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the PRD 
shall be as follows:  

c. Side yard setback: 15 feet.  

 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System – No comments.  
 Public Works – No objections. 
 Environmental Management – No objections. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections. 
 Department of Building Safety – No objections. 
 Fire – No objections. 
 
 

  



 pg. 3 A-916-25 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
The house was constructed in 1994; this is a minor encroachment that was not previously 
documented. 

 
2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 

practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
The parcel is subject to the same requirements as all other properties in the County. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
The situation is specific to this property. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 
the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and 

The encroachment is not likely to have a detrimental impact on any other properties.  
 

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 
others in the same District are allowed; and, 

The applicant is unable to complete a fire restoration permit until this issue is resolved. If the 
variance is not approved, demolition of part of the garage will be necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 4 A-916-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 5 A-916-25 

 
 



 pg. 6 A-916-25 

 
 



 pg. 7 A-916-25 

 
 

 



 pg. 8 A-916-25 

 
 

FOUNDATION SURVEY 



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle









mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle









 pg. 1 A-919-25-A-B 

PETITION NO:  A-919-25-A-B 
 
Requested Action:    

A. To reduce the side yard setback from 15’ to 10’ to allow construction of a detached garage 
at the end of the existing driveway.   the maximum heated and finished floor area for a 
guesthouse from 700 square feet to 1,200 square feet. 

B. To reduce the front yard setback for the secondary front yard on Brooks Woolsey Road 
from 60’ to 40’ to allow construction of the detached garage. 

 
Location:  Hammock Bay at Lake Horton, Lot 17 - 106 Hammock Bay Dr. 
 
Parcel(s): 043304008 
 
District/Land Lot(s): 4th District, Land Lot(s) 184 
 
Zoning:   R-40, Single-Family Residential 
 
Lot Size:   1.157 Acres 
 
Owner(s): Neil and Tara Fogle Orand 
 
Agent:   N/A 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

A. Per Sec. 110-137 (d) (6) requesting to reduce the side yard setback from 15’ to 9’ to allow 
construct of a detached garage at the end of the existing driveway. 

B. Per Sec. 110-137 (d) (4) (a) 1. Requesting to reduce the front yard setback on an arterial 
road from 60’ to 40’ to allow construction of a detached garage at the end of the existing 
driveway.   

 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
It is staff’s opinion that the property presents a unique situation. The shallow depth of the cul-de-sac 
lot, combined with two (2) front yard setbacks and the existing driveway location, create a unique 
challenge.  The HOA sent a letter confirming they do not object to the variances. 
 
NOTE: Per Sec. 102-286(9), a survey of the lot and foundation shall be required as part of the 
construction and inspection process. 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of the request to reduce the side yard setback from 15 feet to 9 feet 
and the request to reduce the front yard setback along an arterial road from 60’ to 40’ for the 
construction of a detached garage at the end of the existing driveway. 



 pg. 2 A-919-25-A-B 

 
HISTORY 

The subject property is a legal lot of record in the Hammock Bay S/D, with a plat recorded February 
13, 2007. It is a 1.157-acre lot and is a legal, conforming lot in the R-40 zoning district.  
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-137. R-40 – Single-family residential district. 
 
(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the R-40 zoning district 
shall be as follows: 
 (4) Front yard setback: 
  (a) Major thoroughfare: 
   1.  Arterial:  60 feet 
   2. Collector:  60 feet 
  (b) Minor thoroughfare:  40 feet 

(6) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System – No comments.  
 Public Works – No objections. 
 Environmental Management – No objections. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections. 
 Department of Building Safety – No objections. 
 Fire – No objections. 
 
 

  



 pg. 3 A-919-25-A-B 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
 
The size and shape do present some unique conditions.  

a. The parcel is a unique shape because it is located in a cul de sac and it has two road 
frontages. 

b. The septic field, underground power and other underground utilities are located in the right 
side of the front yard, making construction in that area very difficult. 

c. The owner would like to utilize the existing driveway, avoid extra grading, and retain mature 
trees.  
 

2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 
practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
 
The lot is relatively shallow because it is on a cul de sac. Locating the garage on the northeast part 
of the lot would require siting it away from the attached garage entry and the driveway. 
Utilities/septic system are located in this area. 

 
3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
 
 The situation is specific to this property. 

 
4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 

the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and 
 
The encroachment is not likely to have a detrimental impact on any other properties and the HOA 
has submitted a letter of approval.  

 
5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 

others in the same District are allowed; and, 
 
A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would not deprive the applicant of the right to construct a 
garage, but it would be located in an area of the yard that is not as easily accessible.  

 
  



 pg. 4 A-919-25-A-B 

 
 
 



 pg. 5 A-919-25-A-B 

 
 



 pg. 6 A-919-25-A-B 

 
 



 pg. 7 A-919-25-A-B 

 
 

 



 pg. 8 A-919-25-A-B 

 
 

FOUNDATION SURVEY 



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



















1
8
4

F
a
y
e
t
t
e

4
t
h

N
E

I
L
 
&

 
T

A
R

A
 
F

O
G

L
E

 
O

R
A

N
D

P
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
F

o
r
:

J
o
b
 
N

o
:

C
o
u
n
t
y
:
 

L
a
n
d
 
L
o
t
:
 

D
a
t
e
:
 

D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
:
 

H
A

M
M

O
C

K
 
B

A
Y

 
1
7

S
.
A

.
 
G

A
S

K
I
N

S

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S
 
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

1
0
/
1
4
/
2
5

C
L
O

S
U

R
E

 
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

T
H

E
 
F

I
E

L
D

 
D

A
T

A
 
U

P
O

N
 
W

H
I
C

H
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

L
A

T
 
I
S

 
B

A
S

E
D

 
 
H

A
S

 
A

 
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

 
P

R
E

C
I
S

I
O

N

O
F

 
O

N
E

 
F

O
O

T
 
I
N

 
3
2
,
1
5
0
 
F

E
E

T
 
A

N
D

 
A

N
 
A

N
G

U
L
A

R
 
E

R
R

O
R

 
O

F
 
0
0
°
 
0
0
'
 
0
2
"
 
P

E
R

 
A

N
G

L
E

P
O

I
N

T
 
A

N
D

 
H

A
S

 
B

E
E

N
 
A

D
J
U

S
T

E
D

 
U

S
I
N

G
 
T

H
E

 
C

O
M

P
A

S
S

 
R

U
L
E

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
.

T
H

I
S

 
P

L
A

T
 
H

A
S

 
B

E
E

N
 
C

A
L
C

U
L
A

T
E

D
 
F

O
R

 
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
I
S

 
F

O
U

N
D

 
T

O
 
B

E

A
C

C
U

R
A

T
E

 
W

I
T

H
I
N

 
O

N
E

 
F

O
O

T
 
I
N

 
1
0
0
,
1
0
1
 
F

E
E

T
.

A
N

G
U

L
A

R
 
&

 
L
I
N

E
A

R
 
M

E
A

S
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

S
 
W

E
R

E
 
O

B
T

A
I
N

E
D

 
U

S
I
N

G
 
A

 
L
I
E

C
A

 
4
0
3
 
T

C
R

T
O

T
A

L
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

r
d
g
a
s
k
i
n
s
7
9
@

g
m

a
i
l
.
c
o
m

J
O

H
N

 
3
:
1
6

&
 
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
,
 
L

L
C

.

6
7
8
-
5
7
1
-
5
0
6
7

F
L
O

O
D

 
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

C
O

R
D

I
N

G
 
T

O
 
F

E
M

A
 
F

L
O

O
D

 
I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

R
A

T
E

 
M

A
P

 
O

F
 
C

O
W

E
T

A
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 
A

N
D

U
N

I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
D

A
T

E
D

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 
2
6
,
 
2
0
1
3
 
M

A
P

 
N

U
M

B
E

R

1
3
1
1
3
C

0
1
6
0
E

,
 
N

O
 
P

O
R

T
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
E

S
 
W

I
T

H
I
N

 
A

 
S

P
E

C
I
A

L
 
F

L
O

O
D

H
A

Z
A

R
D

 
A

R
E

A
.

L
.
L
.
L
.
=

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
L
I
N

E

L
.
L
.
=

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T

N
/
F

=
N

O
W

 
O

R
 
F

O
R

M
E

R
L
Y

D
.
E

.
=

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

B
/
L
=

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
L
I
N

E

P
.
O

.
B

.
=

P
O

I
N

T
 
O

F
 
B

E
G

I
N

N
I
N

G

R
B

F
=

R
E

B
A

R
 
F

O
U

N
D

L
E

G
E

N
D

R
B

S
=

R
E

B
A

R
 
S

E
T

P

L

=
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L
I
N

E

C
O

=
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 
E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E

E
P

=
 
E

D
G

E
 
O

F
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

C
T

P
=

C
R

I
M

P
 
T

O
P

 
P

I
P

E

F
.
W

.
P

.
D

.
=

F
I
E

L
D

 
W

O
R

K
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
 
D

A
T

E

O
/
F

=
O

U
T

 
O

F
 
F

L
O

O
D

 
P

L
A

I
N

D
B

=
D

E
E

D
 
B

O
O

K

P
G

=
P

A
G

E

P
B

=
P

L
A

T
 
B

O
O

K

A
S

 
B

U
I
L
T

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

N
o
.
 
1
6
2
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
I
O

N
A

L

F
.
W

.
P

.
D

.
 
=

 
 
1
0
/
1
4
/
2
5

F
O

R

L
O

T
 
1
7
 
H

A
M

M
O

C
K

 
B

A
Y

 
A

T
 
L
A

K
E

 
H

O
R

T
O

N

P
B

 
5
2
 
P

G
 
1
3
3
-
1
3
4





 pg. 1 A-921-25-A-B-C 

PETITION NO:  A-921-25-A-B-C 
 
Requested Action:    

A. To allow an accessory structure in the front yard.   
B. To reduce the rear yard setback from 50’ to 37.6’ to allow an existing accessory structure to 
be permitted and remain.  
C.  To reduce the rear yard setback from 50’ to 33.7’ to allow an existing concrete deck to 
remain. 

 
Location:  Charles & Brenda Davenport, Lot 1 – 223 Rivers Rd. 
 
Parcel(s): 0901  053 
 
District/Land Lot(s): 9th District, Land Lot(s) 1 
 
Zoning:   R-70, Single-Family Residential 
 
Lot Size:   3.192 Acres 
 
Owner(s): Alexis Kirkbride 
 
Agent:   Ann Kirkbride 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

A. Per Sec. 110-79(e), requesting to allow an accessory structure in the front yard in order to 
allow an existing accessory structure located in the front yard to be permitted and remain.   

B. Per Sec. 110-133 (d) 5, requesting to reduce the rear yard setback from 50’ to 37.6’ to allow 
an existing accessory structure to be permitted and remain. 

C. Per Sec. 110-133 (d)5, requesting to reduce the rear yard setback from 50’ to 33.7’ to allow 
an existing concrete deck to remain.  

 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
It is staff’s opinion that the property presents a unique situation.  The hexagonal shape of the lot 
creates five (5) setbacks.  The zoning definition of rear yard placing the 50’ rear yard setback along 
the property line shared with parcel 0901  072 rather than parcel 0901  090 creates a situation 
where the unpermitted accessory structure needs a variance to the rear yard setback and for being 
in front of the front line of the house.  The septic system is located on the opposite side of the 
house, precluding placement of the accessory structure on the opposite side of the yard. 
 
 



 pg. 2 A-921-25-A-B-C 

   
HISTORY 

 
The current property owner purchased this property from the James Brinkerhoff Estate on June 17, 
2025 with the existing violations and an open pavilion permit that has now expired. 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals heard a request A-799-22 to construct an 1,800 square foot detached 
garage within the rear yard setback on July 25, 2022.  The request was tabled until August 22, 2022, 
and a request to withdraw the application was approved at the August 22, 2022, meeting.   
 
Planning and Zoning staff left a memo for the record of a conversation with the property owner on 
August 31, 2022.  Mr. Brinkerhoff visited the office and requested to place the accessory structure in 
the front yard but not within the rear yard setback.  Deputy Marshal Brian Hitchcock and Zoning 
Technician Dennis King explained it could not be approved in this location without an approved 
variance.  Mr. Brinkerhoff stated he would decide if he wanted to consider an accessory structure 
after the pool was installed.  
 
A pool permit was issued to Tallman Pools for 223 Rivers Road on September 9, 2022 and the final 
inspection of the pool was approved on January 10, 2023.  The approved site plan indicated the pool 
deck would be 60 feet from the rear property line.  Foundation surveys are only required when the 
proposed construction is within two (2) feet of a setback.  
 
The permit for an 800 square foot pool pavilion was issued on September 13, 2023.  The last 
approved inspection was for an anchorbolt on October 27, 2023.  The permit expired on April 16, 
2025 and cannot be renewed because there is a new property owner and zoning cannot approve 
until the illegal accessory structure is resolved. 
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-3. Definitions. 

 Building line, front, means a line running parallel to the street which touches the nearest point 
of the principal structure of the street. 

 Yard, rear, means the area between the rear property line and the rear of the principal 
structure, extending the full width of the lot.  

Sec. 110-79. Residential accessory structures ant their uses. 

(c) (1)  Residential accessory structures shall be limited to one of the following options: 
a.  Two residential accessory structures, per individual lot, that shall not exceed a 
combined footprint of 1,800 square feet or three residential accessory structures, per 
individual lot, that shall not exceed a combined total footprint of 3,600 square feet on 
a lot with a minimum of five acres. 

 
(e) Residential accessory structures located in a front yard.  On a single frontage lot, the area 
between the front building line shall be treated as a front yard with regard to location of residential 
accessory structures. 



 pg. 3 A-921-25-A-B-C 

 

Sec. 110-133.  -  R-70, Single-Family Residential District.  

(d) Dimensional Requirements 

(5) Rear yard setback: 50 feet  

 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System – County water since 2004.  No objections.  
 Public Works – No objections. 
 Environmental Management – No objections. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections. 
 Department of Building Safety – If the variance is approved, the previously issued and now 

expired building permit, RNEW-09-23-071369, cannot be reinstated, and a new building permit 
reflecting the current property owner and the approved scope of work is required.  All work 
shall be completed in accordance with the new permit, all required inspections shall be 
completed, and a Certificate of Occupancy shall be obtained to achieve compliance. 
If the variance is disapproved, a demolition permit is required prior to the removal of any 
structures or improvements. 

 Fire – No objections. 
 
 

  



 pg. 4 A-921-25-A-B-C 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
The hexagonal shape of the lot creates five (5) setbacks.  The zoning definition of rear yard 
placing the 50’ rear yard setback along the property line shared with parcel 0901  072 
rather than parcel 0901  090 creates a situation where the unpermitted accessory structure 
needs a variance to the rear yard setback and for being in front of the front line of the 
house.  The septic system is located on the opposite side of the house, precluding placement 
of the accessory structure on the opposite side of the yard. 
 

2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 
practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 

The parcel is subject to the same requirements as all other properties in the County. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
The situation is specific to this property. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 
the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and 

The encroachment is not likely to have a detrimental impact on any other properties.  
 

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 
others in the same District are allowed; and, 

The applicant is unable to obtain a permit to complete the construction of the pool pavilion 
until this issue is resolved. If this variance is approved, an additional variance will be required 
if the accessory structure in the front yard is more than 1,000 square feet and the pool pavilion 
is 800 square feet.  If the variance is not approved, demolition permit is required.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 5 A-921-25-A-B-C 

 
 
 



 pg. 6 A-921-25-A-B-C 

 
 



 pg. 7 A-921-25-A-B-C 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-921-25-A-B-C 

 
 

 



 pg. 9 A-921-25-A-B-C 

 
 

FOUNDATION SURVEY 



2025 Variance Application    Page 3 of 8 

Petition # A-921-25 A-C 
(assigned by staff) 

 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 

VARIANCE APPLICATION TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  
 

PROPERTY INFORMATION:    
 
Parcel No. 0901  053  Acreage: 3.192  Land Lot:  1                                     Land District: 9     

Address:   223 Rivers Rd., Fayetteville, GA 30214    

Zoning: R-70  Zoning of Surrounding Properties: R-70 & MHP  

Use:  Single Family Residential  

 
PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION AGENT/DEVELOPER INFORMATION (If not owner) 

 
Name Alexis Kirkbride 

Email annkirkbride@gmail.com 

Address 223 Rivers Rd 

City Fayetteville 

State GA                                Zip 30214 

Phone 714-742-3759 

Name Ann Kirkbride 

Email annkirkbride@gmail.com 

Address 223 Rivers Rd 

City Fayetteville 

State GA                      Zip 30214   

Phone 714-742-2445 

 

 
(THIS AREA TO BE COMPLETED BY STAFF): 

PETITION NUMBER:  A-921-25 A-C                                                          
 
� Application Insufficient due to lack of:   
 
by Staff:   Date:   
 
� Application and all required supporting documentation is Sufficient and Complete 
 
by Staff:   Date:   
 
DATE OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING:  January 26, 2026                                                                                   
 
Received payment from Ann F. Kirkbride  a check in the amount of $ 225.00  
 
for application filing fee, and $20.00 for deposit on frame for public hearing sign(s). 
 
Date Paid December 2, 2025 Receipt Number: MISCPZ-12-2025-090900 - 025899 

 
  

mailto:annkirkbride@gmail.com
mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



Alexis Kirkbride

0901 053

9th

mbinns
Rectangle



2025 Variance Application    Page 5 of 8 

VARIANCE INFORMATION 
 

Complete the chart below with the information pertaining to each request.  If additional space is needed, 
please provide the information on a separate sheet of paper. 
 

Ordinance/Section Sec. 110-79 (e) 

Requirement 
No residential accessory structure shall be located in the front yard… 
 

Proposed Change 
Allow an existing accessory structure located in front of the existing house to  
remain. 

Variance Amount 
26.8’ 
 

 

Ordinance/Section Sec. 110-133 (d) 5 

Requirement 
Rear yard setback: 50 feet 
 

Proposed Change 
Reduce the rear yard setback from 50’ to 37.6’ to allow an existing accessory 
structure to remain. 

Variance Amount 
12.4’ 
 

 

Ordinance/Section Sec. 110-133 (d) 5 

Requirement 
Rear yard setback: 50 feet 
 

Proposed Change 
Reduce the rear yard setback from 50’ to 33.7’ to allow an existing concrete  
deck to remain as required in Sec. 110-79 (k) 

Variance Amount 
16.3’ 
 

 
VARIANCE SUMMARY 

 
Provide a detailed and specific summary of each request.  If additional space is needed, please 
attach a separate sheet of paper. 
 
New owners are looking to reinstate the expired permit for Pool Pavilion and bring the property 
Into compliance.  Reducing the setbacks will allow pool concrete slab and storage to remain. 
The Pool Pavilion permit was in process when previous owner passed with 4 of 11 inspections 
Completed.  We are unable to cover trenches awaiting needed inspections making this area 
unsafe for my small grandchildren. 
 
  













 pg. 1 A-922-25-A-B-C 

PETITION NO: A-922-25-A-B-C  
 
Requested Action:   

A. To allow an accessory structure in the front yard.   
B. To increase the maximum allowable 3,600 square feet of accessory structures to 7,407 
square feet to allow the construction of a 4,800 square foot airplane hangar. 
C.  To increase the maximum number of accessory structures from three (3) to five (5) to allow 
the existing accessory structures to remain and construct an airplane hangar.   

      
Location:  Coventry Estates, Lot 73 - 428 Lester Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0515  023 
 
District/Land Lot(s): 5th District, Land Lot(s) 65 
 
Zoning:   R-40, Single-Family Residential 
 
Lot Size:   9.1 Acres 
 
Owner(s): Timothy A. Belcher & Ruth M. Belcher Revocable Living Trust 
 
Agent:   N/A 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing: January 26, 2026     
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

A. Per Sec. 110-79(e) requesting to allow an accessory structure (aircraft hangar) in the front 
yard.  

B. Per Sec. 110-79(c)(1)a., requesting to increase the maximum square footage of accessory 
structures allowed in a residential zoning with more than five (5) acres from 3,600 square 
feet to 7,407 square feet to allow the construction of a 4,800 square foot airplane hangar. 

C. Per Sec. 110-79(c)(1)a., requesting to increase the maximum number of accessory 
structures allowed in a residential zoning with more than five (5) acres from three (3) to 
five (5) to allow an existing structure to remain and the construction of an airplane hangar. 

 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
Coventry Estates was developed as an aircraft community in R-40 zoning in the late 1960’s.  The 
existing zoning ordinance, developed 1992, allows an aircraft hangar as an accessory structure 
referencing it as a conditional use in A-R, M-1, and M-2 zoning districts.  This lot sits at the end of the 
aircraft landing area (Willow Pond Aviation) and has more than the minimum acreage required in A-
R zoning, but it is part of the Coventry Estates development as R-40, thus rezoning is not an option.   
 



 pg. 2 A-922-25-A-B-C 

This was originally two (2) lots in Coventry Estates that were combined some time prior to April 
1975.  The existing house sits on the lot originally known as 445 Sherwood Dr.  The location of the 
existing house makes the front building line more than 400’ from the right-of-way of Lester Rd., 
placing more than 6.68 acres of this property as in front of the front building line.  If this lot was 
zoned A-R, this front building line would not apply. 
 
The property currently has four (4) accessory structures: 

1. Detached garage greenhouse (1,656 square feet) 
2. Storage shed (192 square feet) 
3. Old foundation (615 square feet) - this would not count if the foundation was for a 

recreational court 
4. Wood shed (144 square feet) 

The total existing number and square footage of accessory structures is four (4) totaling 2,607 
square feet, three (3) totaling 1,992 square feet if you count the old foundation as a recreational 
court.  Additionally, the proposed square footage and number would not count if this property was 
zoned A-R. 
 
The proposed hangar meets all the requirements of the conditional use hangar allowed in A-R 
zoning except the A-R zoning.  Coventry Estates was developed as an aircraft community and is a 
privilege enjoyed by many of its residents.   
 
  



 pg. 3 A-922-25-A-B-C 

HISTORY 
 
This parcel is a legal lot of record; it is indicated as Lot 73 in Coventry Estates subdivision on the April 
1975 tax map.  The original plat recorded on August 15, 1969, in Plat Book 5 Page 105 indicates the 
original two (2) lots that are now combined. The lot is located on Lester Road at the end of the Willow 
Pond Air Strip.  It is zoned R-40 and all standard building setbacks apply. 
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-3.    Definitions 
 Building line, front, means a line running parallel to the street which touches the nearest point 
of the principal structure to the street. 
 
Sec. 110-79.  Residential accessory structures and their uses. 
 

(a)  The following residential accessory structures are permitted in A-R, all residential zoning 
districts and properties regulated under Section 110-169, pertaining to “Conditional use 
approval – Single-family residence and residential accessory structures and/or uses.” 

(1)  Well/pump house;  (70 square feet or less does not count) 
(2) Guesthouse; 
(3) Greenhouse, permanent or temporary; 
(4) Swimming pool (does not count), hot tub (does not count);, pool deck, pool 

equipment enclosure structure (70 square feet or less does not count), and pool 
screen enclosure; 

(5) Garage; 
(6) Recreational court; (does not count) 
(7) Gazebo; 
(8) Cabana/pool house, boat house, detached covered patio, and detached covered 

deck; 
(9) Storage building; 
(10)  Carport; 
(11) Solar Panel (ground-mounted) (under 200 square feet does not count); 
(12) Wind turbine/windmill (ground-mounted) (under 200 square feet does not count); 
(13) Aircraft hangar, detached (see article V of this chapter); (does not count in A-R); 
(14) Dog house (70 square feet or less does not count) and dog pen/run (does not count);  
(15) Playhouse/treehouse; (70 square feet or less does not count) 
(16) Outdoor kitchen and/or fireplace (does not count); 
(17) Patio; and  
(18) Underground storm shelter(does not count). 

 
 (c)  Number and size.  The number and size of residential accessory structures shall conform 

to the requirements described herein. 
(1) Residential accessory structures shall be limited to one of the following options: 

a. Two residential accessory structures, per individual lot, that shall not 
exceed a combined total footprint of 1,800 square feet or three 



 pg. 4 A-922-25-A-B-C 

residential accessory structures, per individual lot, that shall not exceed a 
combined total footprint of 3,600 square feet on a lot with a minimum of 
five (5) acres.  
 

(3) A well/pump house, pool equipment enclosure, dog house, or 
playhouse/treehouse consisting of 70 square feet or less; a dog pen/run, 
swimming pool, hot tub, or recreational court; aircraft hangar, farm outbuilding, 
greenhouse, horse stable, or auxiliary structure or one semi-trailer/box truck (as 
regulated under section 110-125, pertaining to “A-R, Agricultural-Residential 
District” and section 110-169, pertaining to “Conditional Use approval”); 
ground/pole-mounted solar panel consisting of less than 200 square feet or 
ground-mounted wind turbine/windmill; uncovered outdoor kitchen, fireplace; 
patio; underground storm shelter; horse quarters (as regulated under section 
110-169, pertaining to “Conditional use approval”), temporary greenhouse or 
beehive shall not be included in determining the number of residential accessory 
structures provided herein. 

 
(e) Residential accessory structures located in a front yard.  On a single frontage 

lot, the area between the street and the front building line shall be treated as a 
front yard with regard to the location of residential accessory structures.  

 
No residential accessory structure shall be located in a front yard except:  a well/pump 
house consisting of 70 square feet or less; a detached garage on a single frontage lot…; or a 
residential accessory structure on a lot in the A-R zoning district which consists of five (5) or 
more acres. 

 
Sec. 110-137. – R-40, Single-Family Residential District. 
 

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the R-40 zoning 
district shall be as follows: 

(1) Lot area: 65,340 square feet (1.5 acres) 
(2) Lot width: 150 feet. 
(3) Floor area: 1,500 square feet. 
(4) Front yard setback: 

a. Major thoroughfare: 
1. Arterial: 60 feet. 
2. Collector: 60 feet. 

b. Minor thoroughfare: 40 feet. 
(5) Rear yard setback: 30 feet. 
(6) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 

 
Sec. 110-169. Conditional use approval. 
 

(2) Conditional uses allowed. 



 pg. 5 A-922-25-A-B-C 

b. Aircraft landing area.  Allowed in the A-R, M-1, and M-2 zoning districts. The intent of these 
rules and regulations is to provide a safer environment for the operation of aircraft. 
1. FAA air space clearance approval for visual flying flight operations and landing 

areas shall be required, where applicable. 
2. For any newly developed landing area for fixed wing  aircraft a 1,000-foot clear 

zone as defined by FAA extending from the end of all runways shall be maintained 
through ownership or easement, and in no case, shall the end of the runway be 
closer than 200 feet from the property line. 

3. Any newly developed landing area for fixed wing aircraft shall be located at least 
300 feet, as measured from the centerline of the runway, from all property lines. 

4. Any on-site roofed structures shall be set back at least 200 feet from the nearest 
point on the centerline of the runway. 

5. Heliport.  These regulations shall not apply to a hospital which maintains a heliport 
for medical purposes. 

i. FAA air space clearance approval for visual flying flight operations and 
landing areas shall be required, where applicable.  

ii.   A site plan, as prepared by a registered land surveyor, indicating the    
heliport landing area and center point on the lot and setbacks shall be 
required.  The center point of the heliport landing area shall be indicated 
on the lot. 

iii.  A heliport shall be a minimum of 300 feet from all property lines as 
measured from the center point of the heliport landing area. 

6. Aircraft hangar.  Allowed in the A-R, M-1 and M-2 zoning districts. 
i. An aircraft hangar shall comply with all of the criteria of subsection (2)b.1 

through 5 of this section. 
ii.   Use of an aircraft hangar shall be limited to storage and maintenance of 

aircraft.  Outdoor storage of aircraft parts is prohibited.  An aircraft 
hangar shall not include any living quarters or be used for residential 
purposes. 

iii.   In the A-R zoning district, on lots less than ten (10) acres in size, there 
shall be a maximum of one detached hangar allowed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 6 A-922-25-A-B-C 

DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  
 

 Water System – Fayette County Water System does not provide water service to this parcel. 
 Public Works – No comments. 
 Environmental Management – No comments. 
 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed variance. 

This does not constitute approval of final location and construction of structure.  
 Department of Building Safety – This variance requests approval for a proposed hangar 

larger than permitted by the zoning ordinance.  If the variance is approved, a building permit 
is required prior to the construction of the hangar.  All work shall comply with the approved 
variance, applicable zoning regulations, adopted construction dofes, and county ordinances.  
Compliance shall be achieved only upon completion of all required inspections and issuance 
of the appropriate certificate of occupancy.   The variance ruling shall be followed, and if the 
ruling includes a condition requiring removal of any accessory structures, a demolition permit 
may be required in order to complete the removal and update the property record.   

 Fire – No objections. 
 
  



 pg. 7 A-922-25-A-B-C 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
This is a 9.1 acre parcel, 7.6 acres larger than the minimum requirement in R-40 zoning with 
well water.  The existing house was built on what was a second lot, placing the entirety of the 
first lot in front of the front building line. 

 
2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 

practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
The development predates the hangar requirements in the zoning ordinance.  Not allowing this 
property to have an aircraft hangar creates a hardship when the development is an aircraft 
community with access to the Willow Pond airstrip. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
The house sitting on what would be the rear lot creates over 6 acres in front of the front building 
line.  While existing accessory structures are allowed to remain and be rebuilt in front of the 
front building line because they were constructed prior to January 24, 2008, it limits the property 
owner’s ability to improve the property to it’s fullest extent. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 
the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and 

It is unlikely the construction of an aircraft hangar in the proposed location would cause 
substantial detriment to the public good.  It is likely that construction of the aircraft hangar 
would increase the value of this property and the properties surrounding it.  
 

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 
others in the same District are allowed; and, 

The applicant would not be allowed to have an aircraft hangar in a development designed for 
aircraft usage. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 
 

 



 pg. 9 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 
 
 



 pg. 10 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 11 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 12 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 

 
 
 

 



 pg. 13 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 14 A-922-25-A-B-C 

 
PLAT 

 



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle






















	A-912-25 Staff Report COMPLETED.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-912 -25
	Location:  Nelms Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215
	Parcel(s): 0701 063
	Owner(s):  Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie Newman Living Trust
	Agent:   N/A
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System –No objections.
	 Public Works – No objections.
	 Environmental Management – No objections. Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner may be required to locate wetlands, creeks, and produce a flood certificate.
	 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed variance. This does not constitute approval of future use, nor does it guarantee that the lot will have suitable soils for a septic system.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-915-25 Staff Report.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-915-25
	Location:  104 Hammock Bay Drive, Fayetteville, GA 30215
	Parcel(s): 044206004
	Zoning: R-40
	Owner(s):  Kimberly Waldrop
	Agent:  Marion D. Waldrop, Jr.
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – FCWS has no objection to the proposed variance.
	 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objection to the variance request.
	 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed variance.
	 Fire – No objections.
	 Building Safety – No objections. A building permit is required for new garage.

	A-916-25 Staff Report COMPLETED.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-916-25
	Location:  140 Wellborn Chase, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215
	Parcel(s): 0602 05020
	Owner(s):  Elizabeth Ritchey
	Agent:   N/A
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	Sec. 110-149.  -  Planned unit development.

	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – No comments.
	 Public Works – No objections.
	 Environmental Management – No objections.
	 Environmental Health Department – No objections.
	 Department of Building Safety – No objections.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-919-25 Staff Report - COMPLETED.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-919-25-A-B
	Location:  Hammock Bay at Lake Horton, Lot 17 - 106 Hammock Bay Dr.
	Parcel(s): 043304008
	Owner(s): Neil and Tara Fogle Orand
	Agent:   N/A
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  January 26, 2026
	REQUEST
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – No comments.
	 Public Works – No objections.
	 Environmental Management – No objections.
	 Environmental Health Department – No objections.
	 Department of Building Safety – No objections.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-922-25 READY TO PRINT.pdf
	PETITION NO: A-922-25-A-B-C
	Location:  Coventry Estates, Lot 73 - 428 Lester Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215
	Parcel(s): 0515  023
	Owner(s): Timothy A. Belcher & Ruth M. Belcher Revocable Living Trust
	Agent:   N/A
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing: January 26, 2026
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – Fayette County Water System does not provide water service to this parcel.
	 Public Works – No comments.
	 Environmental Management – No comments.
	 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed variance. This does not constitute approval of final location and construction of structure.
	 Department of Building Safety – This variance requests approval for a proposed hangar larger than permitted by the zoning ordinance.  If the variance is approved, a building permit is required prior to the construction of the hangar.  All work shall...
	 Fire – No objections.




